- i e T

Celebraling &
200 years- &
1768 - 2018

------

f

uhn 5 Squara I:Egan as humas fnr tha wealthiest in the city. By the time this picture was taken h'; the Leader pdmmgrapher in 1962, they had fallen into disrepair and many were used as tenements

Big p]ans for Georgian Limeriek

FROM THE ARCHIVES
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N the sixty years after the
1691 Siege, Limerick had
grown into a period of peace.
The walls that once sur-
rounded the city were de-
caying and plans were afoot for

their demolition,

Edmund Sexton Pery (1719 - 1808),
a trained barrister became a
member of the Irish House of Com-
mons for Wicklow in 1751 although

his home was in Limerick. Pery is
most widely remembered today for
the large Georgian landscape of
Newtown Pery the area of the city
near the Shannon that bears his
name. This was not his first housing
plan in the city as that year he
turned his attention towards some
of the land that he had inherited in
the St John's Parish area.

Pery did not work alone on this
project. He went into partnership
with John Purdon, of Tinerana near
Killaloe, and the pair hired architect
Francis Bindon (1698 - 1765) to
design the square.

This era in Limerick history saw a

rise in local aristocracy and gentry
who had both large summer homes
on their estates and city homes
where they would stay during the
winter months and while on busi-
ness in the city.

The old city within the walls of
Englishtown and Irishtown were
dirty and overcrowded. Every inch
of land, including the space on
Baal's Bridge was used for housing.
There was nowhere for this new
fashionable set to stay, and New
Square as it was originally called,
was created to address this need.
The square was quickly renamed St
John's Square as it faced St John's
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Church but it is more commonly
known asjust John's Square.

Bindon's original design consists
of two L-shaped blocks of lime-
stone-fronted houses each one
identical to its neighbour. There
were originally eight houses (with a
further two subseguently added)
built on three sides of the square.

All ten of the houses were three
storey over basement.

The initial build cost £630to com-
plete. Pery and Purdon kept a
building to themselves and the
other houses were let at £32 per
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VERY strange article
appeared in the Chron-
icle on July 30, 1851
when the Rector John
Elmes of St John's
urch, John Square was accused
of exhuming human bones from
the churchyard and moving them
to the pig market.

In 1851, the ground in the
churchyard was being levelled to
make way for the construetion of
the new St John's Churech. On June
23, 1851, a committee report on St.
John's churchyard was released.
Thaddeus MacDonnell, Mayor,
chaired the committee and they
had visited the churchyard three
days earlier to ascertain whether
the reportsin circulation about the
disinterment of the dead were
fact.

The committee statement read:
“Your committee found that the
greater portion of the church yard
had been levelled by the removal of
the surface of various depths, irre-
spective as to whether that surface
contained the remains of the dead
interred recently or for a long
period. That a large portion of this
surface, containing the bones of
the dead, had been removed to the
old pig market in the vicinity of the
artillery barracks. That this opera-
tion appeared to your committee to
have been carried on for a long
time, and was by no means con-
fined to the immediate vicinity of
the church, now rebuilding, as
stated, and to have been general
over the entire surface of the
church yard, except where pre-
vented by the tombs erected over
vaults being now considerably over
the level to which the cemetery has
been lowered. That the graves of
several citizens were uprooted,
and the coffins removed, in some
instances, to other parts of the
church yard, where removal was
practicable, but that some eoffins
too fragile to disinter, were burned
in heaps - the charred remnants of
which were manifest to your com-
mittee, covered with stone and
rubbish, apparently for the pur-
pose of concealment. That in some
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annum. Original tenants ineluded
Vere Hunt, of Curraghchase, Wil-

liam Monsell of Tervoe and Pery's 1

brother, the Rev. William Cecil Pery.
Another of the early tenants was
Dorothea Crump, widow of General
Crump, who later married William
Cecil Pery. William succeeded his
father in the vicarage of St. John’s
Church, which occupied the fourth
easterly side of the square. William
Cecil Pery would later become the
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ST JOHN’S CHURCH

(LIMERICK),

‘It was the duty of
the vicar not only to
protect the souls of

the living, but to
take care of the
dead”

parts all traces of the burial place
of certain families was obliterated
by the removal of the tomb-stones.
That tomb-stones and head-stones
lie piled over each other, having
been removed from their position:
so that a church yard that, in the re-
collection of some of your com-

Protestant Bishop of Limerick.

At the time, the church of St
John’s was a 15th century struc-
ture, The wall around the church-
yard was built in 1693. This ehurch
was demolished and the present
church was opened on June 24,
1852. A few weeks later on July 14,
1852, a report from the petty ses-
sions appeared in the Chronicle.
“Some persons engaged with the
election posted on the pillar of St
John's new church gate, an inflam-
matory placard. Rev John Elmes

| went to the place and desired a
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mittee, was crowded with those
records of the dead, now present
but a few large monuments over
vaults. That several coffins are now
level with the surface of the
church-yard, the entire depth of
the soil heretofore covering them
being, as before-mentioned, re-
moved.

That instances of tomb-stones
having being disposed of, for the
purpose of erasing that inscrip-
tions, in order to have them used
anew, have occurred. That these
facts were patent to your committee
from their own observations - from
the evidence of the grave-digger em-
ployed in the church-yard, who
made no concealment that he was
the instrument of this profanation,

man in his employment to take it
down, which was done. In a few
minutes after Mr. Elmes had re-
tired a mob of some hundreds
came rushing on, and beat severely
the man who had removed the
placard. Mr Elmes went amongst
them and brought the man into his
house, but the erowd continued to
increase, and used violent and
threatening language. Mr Elmes’
two sons and the parish school-
master went to the magistrates for
the police, and the answer they
brought back was to summon all

] acting under the direction of the

rector.”

The following week this report
was brought up in the Limerick
town Council meeting were a Mr
Cullen stated that “it was the duty
of the vicar not only to protect the
souls of the living, but to take care
of the dead, and he would be sorry
to hear that any clergyman would
act in such a manner as it now ap-
peared the Rev. Mr. Elmes did. He
hoped government would take cog-
nizance of the matter, and adopt
such measures as would prevent a
recurrence of such brutal conduet
towards the ashes of the dead in
this country - that would deter
others from acting in the inhuman
way in which Mr. Elmes did. He vis-

the offending parties”. The church
was deconsecrated in the1g70s and
is now used by Dance Limerick.
The last rector of St John's
Parish who lived in John Square
was Canon Frederick Langbridge
(1849-1922). Langbridge was a nov-
elist, poet and dramatist most well
known for the line “Two men look
out through the same bars: One
sees the mud, and one the stars”.
His funeral was recorded in the
Chronicle on January 24, 1922,
“The funeral of the late Canon Fre-
derick Langbridge, M.A, D Litt,

o {h umhw arden),
Limerick, -before 31st

ited the burial ground, and con-
versed with the grave digger, who
told him all had been done by the
direction of the rector”.

The work on the new church and
churchyard ended the following
year. The Rev John Elmes con-
tinued as rector of St John's
Church.

He passed away in the rectory,
John Square in 1869. He was buried

in the churchyard that caused so
much controversy eighteen years

earlier. His epitaph reads “Sacred to
the memory of Revd John Elmes.
The beloved minister of this parish
for 31 years. Under whom the
present church was rebuilt.

He died January 5th 1869 aged 63
years.”

took place yesterday from the
Reetory, St John's, for St John's
Church, of which the rev. gen-
tleman had been Rector for close
on forty years. The cortege was
large, and was representative of all
classes and ereeds, testifying to the
respect and esteem in which the
rev. gentleman was held in the city,
and the sympathy which is so
widely felt with Mrs Landbridge
and her daughter in their bereave-
ment. The poles outside St John's

Temperance Society were draped
in black.”
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